UNI TED STATES DI STRI CT COURT
EASTERN DI STRI CT OF PENNSYLVAN A

HARRY RI DDI CK, JR. ClVIL ACTI ON

)
) NO 96-3975
Plaintiff )
)
VS. )
)
DAVI D LEH, ROBERT PALMER, )
JAMES STEPHENS, EDWARD SWEENEY, )
AND HELMJT FRI ED )
)
Def endant s. )

TROUTMAN, S.J.
MEMORANDUM

Presently before the Court are two notions to dism ss.
The Plaintiff, a prisoner, is proceeding pro se. He has not
filed a response to either Motion to Dismiss. Accordingly, we
will keep in mnd the |liberal construction accorded to the
pl eadi ngs of pro se claimants, and shall conduct an independent
exam nation of the Conplaint in order to assess whether it can
survive the two respective Mtions to Dismss. For reasons

di scussed nore fully below, we determne that it cannot.

Factual Background

The followng are the facts as all eged by the
Plaintiff. The Plaintiff, Harry Riddick, Jr. (hereinafter, "the
Plaintiff") asserts that he surrendered to | aw enforcenent
authorities at the All entown Police Departnent on August 14,

1994. The Allentown Police Departnent told the Plaintiff that
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while they did not want him "the Feds do". (See, Plaintiff's
Second Anended Conpl ai nt).

The Plaintiff was subsequently arrested by defendants
Davi d Leh and Robert Pal ner who are both All entown police
officers. Thereafter, the Plaintiff was transported to the
Lehi gh County Prison by Defendant Janes Stephens where he was
taken into custody. Upon his arrival at the prison, Plaintiff
was signed into custody by Defendant Helmut Fried. Defendant Ed
Sweeney at all relevant tinmes was the warden of the Prison.

Plaintiff was placed in a Unit, called "the Chost
Pod", which allegedly had been closed for repairs. He stayed in
this unit for four days during which tinme plaintiff alleges he
was visited by "agents" who questioned himand others housed in
the sanme unit regarding bail. Plaintiff maintains that at no
time did he receive his Mranda warni ngs.

On August 15, 1994, the Plaintiff was arraigned at the
prison before the Honorable Arnold Rapoport, United States
Magi strate Judge. Plaintiff alleges that the charges upon which
the warrant was issued were never brought forth, and that he was
arrai gned on charges not listed in the arrest warrant.

In Plaintiff's Second Anmended Conpl ai nt, which was
filed October 25, 1996, the Plaintiff argues that his due process
rights were violated by the nanmed Defendants. Consequently, he
seeks both conpensatory and punitive damages under 42 U.S.C. 8§

1983.



Legal Standard

As conceded by Defendants, in disposing of a notion to
dism ss under Fed. R Cv. P. 12(b)(6), the court nust accept the
facts alleged in the Conplaint as true together with al
reasonabl e i nferences that can be drawn therefrom and construe

themin a light nost favorable to the Plaintiff. Mirkowitz v.

Nort heast Lnd Co., 906 F.2d 100, 103 (3d G r. 1990); Hough/Loew
Associates, Inc. v. CLZ Realty Co., 760 F. Supp. 1141 (E D. Pa.

1991). In order to prevail on a notion to dismss, a defendant
must establish that the plaintiffs can prove no set of facts

which would entitle themto relief. Jones v. Arvor, Inc., 820 F.

Supp. 205, 206 (E.D. Pa. 1993) (citing H shon v. King & Spalding,

467 U.S. 69, 73, 104 S. C. 2229, 2232, 81 L.Ed.2d 59 (1984).

DI SCUSSI ON

Def endants Fried and Sweeney

Plaintiff has brought this action alleging a violation
of his civil rights under color of state law in violation of 42
US C 8§ 1983. Notably, 42 U S.C. § 1983 provides a Federal
remedy for deprivations of Constitutional rights by authorizing
suits against public officials and governnent entities. See

Monroe v. Pape, 365 U S. 167, 81 S. . 473, 5 L.Ed.2d 492 (1961).

In order to recover under 8 1983, a civil rights plaintiff nust
prove two elenents: (1) deprivation of a Federally protected

right "secured by the Constitution and the Iaws of the United
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States,"” and (2) state action under color of |aw Lugar v.
Edmondson G 1 Co., 457 U. S. 922, 930, 102 S.Ct. 2744, 2750, 73

L. Ed. 2d 482 (1982) (quoting Flagg Brothers v. Brooks, 436 U.S.
149, 155-56, 98 S. Ct. 1729, 1732-34, 56 L.Ed.2d 185 (1978).

We turn now to allegations of the Conplaint in order to
determ ne whether the Plaintiff has established a valid claim
under 8§ 1983. Turning first to Defendant Fried, we glean from
the allegations of the Conplaint that his only role was as the
of ficer who signed for custody of Plaintiff, on the basis of a
facially valid remander, on August 14, 1994 at Lehi gh County
Prison. The Court fails to see the constitutional violation
emanating fromthis conduct; it plainly does not anbunt to a
deprivation of any known right or privilege. As stated above, it
is axiomatic that in order to state a valid 42 U.S.C. § 1983
claim a plaintiff "nust denonstrate that the conduct conpl ai ned
of was conmtted by a person acting under state |law and ' that the
conduct deprived himof rights, privileges or imunities secured

by the Constitution.'" Piecknick v. Commobnwealth of Pennsylvania,

36 F.3d 1250, 1255-56 (3d Cr. 1994) quoting Carter v. City of

Phi | adel phia, 989 F.2d 117, 119 (3d G r. 1993) (enphasis added).

Here, the Plaintiff fails to explain how Defendant Fried, in
sinply signing for custody of the Plaintiff, denied himany right
or privilege protected under the Constitution. Thus, it is
evident that the Plaintiff cannot state a valid section 1983

cl ai m agai nst defendant Fried. Accordingly, Defendant Fried's

Motion to Dismss will be granted.
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Next, we look to the allegation directed toward the
Def endant Warden Sweeney. W note first that he (Defendant
Sweeney) has accurately stated that the doctrine of respondeat
superior is not a basis for liability under 42 U.S.C. § 1983.1
See, Blanche Road Corp. v. Bensalem Twp., 57 F.3d 253 (3d Gr.

1995) (Doctrine of Respondeat Superior may not be enpl oyed to
i npose section 1983 liability on supervisor for conduct of
subordi nate which violates citizen's constitutional rights);

Hanpton v. Hol mesburg Prison Oficials, 546 F.2d 1077 (1976) ("In

section 1983 suits liability nmay not be inposed on the
traditional standards of respondeat superior").

Thus, assum ng for a nonent that there was sone sort of
violation of plaintiff's constitutional rights, the plaintiff
fails to all ege any actual know edge or participation on
Def endant Sweeney's part. |Indeed, nothing in the Conplaint
suggests that Sweeney nmay have hinself participated in any sort
of deprivation of a constitutional right. Rather, the Plaintiff
suggests that the Warden is cul pable by way of inferred
know edge, ... "[Db]y inference it becones apparent the Warden had
to have known and approved of the special placenent of R ddick
and others in his case, which, again by inference, nakes it

apparent that the Warden was aware of the irregularity of the

1. Defendants Sweeney and Fried argue as a prelimnary matter
that the Plaintiff is barred frombringing this action agai nst
because of the applicable statute of limtations. W find that
in light of the Plaintiff's pro se status, and the fact that we
have determined there is a substantive basis for dismssal, it is
unnecessary to address this argunent.
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Ri ddick arrest, and the illegality of his detainnment prior to any
arraignment" (See Plaintiff's Conplaint).

W find that Plaintiff's contention |acks nerit.
Plaintiff's attenpt to base a § 1983 claimon alleged inplied
know edge is futile. See, Youse v. Carlucci, 867 F. Supp. 317

(E.D. Pa. 1994) (There can be no vicarious liability in federal
civil rights action under respondeat superior theory, and
al l egations of participation or actual know edge and acqui escence

nmust be nade with appropriate particularity); Brown v. Thonpson,

868 F. Supp. 326 (S.D. Ga. 1994) (Prison warden was not |iable
for allegedly poor nedical treatnment inmate received, where there
was no evidence that warden condoned or directly participated in
al l egedly unconstitutional treatnent).

More inportantly, however, even if the Plaintiff had
properly alleged that Defendant Sweeney had direct participation
or actual know edge, the question which automatically ensues from
this is: direct participation and/or actual know edge in what?

In | ooking at the Conplaint it appears that the answer to this
guestion is the know edge that the Plaintiff was being kept with
some others separate fromthe rest of the prison popul ation

| nasmuch as Sweeney coul d have known of these
procedures it remains unclear to us how the fact that the
Plaintiff (wth sonme others) was initially placed in an Unit not
normally reserved for prisoners anounts to a deprivation of a
constitutional right. As Defendants aptly point out, "[t]here is

no right to be clothed in prison attire instead of street clothes
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when incarcerated, and there is no right to be processed upon
adm ssion in one housing unit versus another. Neither of these
al l egations state any Ei ghth anmendnent viol ations regardi ng
conditions of confinenent, or a violation of any other
constitutional right." (See, Mdtion of Defendants Sweeney and
Fried to Dismss, pg. 5. W find this statenent to be true.
Next, we briefly address the allegation that the
Plaintiff never received his Mranda rights. Assumng this is
true, it is unclear how the Warden of the Prison could be
inplicated in this alleged deprivation. Quite sinply, it is not
the duty of the prison to admnister the Mranda rights in the
first place and, consequently, liability for a violation of the
M randa rights cannot be shifted onto the warden of the prison.
Mor eover, as explained nore fully below, an action for civil
damages is not the appropriate renedy for the deprivation of an
individaul's Mranda rights. As such, Defendant Sweeney's notion

to dismss will |likew se be granted.

Def endants Leh, Pal mer and Stephens

Def endants Leh and Pal ner were the two state police
officers who arrested Plaintiff after he turned himinto the
Al'l entown Police Departnent. Leh and Pal ner were also sworn to
special duty for the Drug Enforcenent Agency (DEA) during the
period at issue. Defendant Stephens was the police officer who

drove Plaintiff to the Prison.



I n Def endants Leh, Palnmer and Stephens' Mtion to
Di smiss, they contend, as an initial matter, that Plaintiff's 8§
1983 claimfails to neet the specificity in pleading standards
i nposed by the Court of Appeals for the Third G rcuit for civil
rights actions. W note, however, that all of the cases cited by

the Defendants in support of this proposition predate Leathernan

v. Tarrant County, 507 U S. --, 113 S. C. 1160, 122 L.Ed.2d 517

(1993), in which the Suprene Court held that the courts are not
permtted to ordain nore stringent pleading requirenents than the
noti ce pleading standards set forth in Fed. R Cv. P. 8(a).

Mor eover, Defendants have made no reference to Leathernman and no

effort to convince the Court that a hei ghtened pl eadi ng standard
shoul d be inposed for § 1983 clains notw thstandi ng the hol di ng

in Leatherman. Thus, we will not further consider the

Def endant s’ argunent regarding the specificity, or |ack thereof,
of the Conplaint as a basis for dismssing Plaintiff's § 1983
claim

Next, we turn back to the Conplaint in order to address
the Plaintiff's chief charge, that he did not receive his Mranda
rights prior to his incarceration. W note, first, that under

Rhode Island v. Innis, 446 U S. 291, 100 S.C. 1682, 64 L. Ed. 2d

297 (1980), the Suprene Court of the United States held that the
speci al procedural safeguards outlined in Mranda are required
not when a suspect is sinply taken into custody but rather, when
a suspect in custody is subject to interrogation. Notably, in

the instant case, the Plaintiff does not allege that Defendants
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Leh, Pal ner, and Stephens ever questioned himwhile in custody.
Rat her, the Conplaint states only that Defendants Leh and Pal ner
were the ones who arrested him while Defendant Stephens was the
one who transported himto the prison. Based on this factual
scenario, the Plaintiff cannot successfully aver that his Mranda
rights were violated when Defendants Leh, Palnmer and Stephens
arrested and transferred himto the prison.

The Plaintiff does, however, nmake vague accusati ons
that "agents" canme into the block where he (Plaintiff) was
residing and proceeded to question himw thout any M randa
warnings. Oddly, Plaintiff does not identify the agents. Mre
significant for our purposes, nowhere does he identify these
"agents" as either Leh, Palner or Stephens. Hence, Plaintiff
cannot make a valid clai magainst Leh, Pal ner or Stephens for
denial of his Mranda rights.

However, even assunming for an instant that the
Plaintiff had been denied his Mranda rights by Defendants Leh
Pal mer and Stephens, it does not ensue that he would be able to
bring a viable 8 1983 claim To the contrary, the renedy for a
violation of a suspect's Mranda rights is the exclusion from
evi dence of any conpelled self-incrimnation, not a civil rights

action under 42 U S.C. § 1983. Warren v. City of Lincoln,

Nebr aska, 864 F.2d 1436, 1442 (8th Gr.), cert. denied, 490 U S

1091, 109 S.Ct. 2431, 104 L.Ed.2d 988 (1989) Cf. Heck v.
Hunphrey, 512 U S 485, 114 S . Ct. at 2372 (The Suprene Court held

that to recover damages for an all egedly unconstitutional
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conviction or confinenent a 8§ 1983 plaintiff nust prove that the
convi ction or confinenent has been reversed on direct appeal or
called into question by a federal court's habeas corpus).
Accordingly, presumng Plaintiff's Mranda rights were deni ed by
Def endants Leh, Pal nmer and Stephens, the present action for civil
damages under 81983 is not the appropriate vehicle for the
Plaintiff to vindicate such rights, at |least at this point.

Thus, in taking as true the allegations in the Conplaint, we
cannot see how the Plaintiff can state a clai mupon which relief
can be granted. Therefore, we wll enter an Order granting

Def endants Pal ner, Leh and Stephens' Mtion to Di sm ss.
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